

(2)) substantially restricted in fishing as a result of compliance with United States of America et al. v. State of Washington et al., Civil No. 9213, United States District Court for Western District of Washington, February 12, 1974, and Sohapp v. Smith, 302 F. Supp. 899 (D. Oregon, 1969), as amended, affirmed, and remanded 529 F. 2d 570 (9th Cir., 1976).

The department shall not purchase a vessel without also purchasing all current Washington commercial fishing licenses and delivery permits and charter boat licenses issued to the vessel or its owner. The department may purchase current licenses and delivery permits without purchasing the vessel.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 2. Section 10, chapter 183, Laws of 1975 1st ex. sess., section 6, chapter 230, Laws of 1977 ex. sess., section 3, chapter 43, Laws of 1979 ex. sess., section 161, chapter 46, Laws of 1983 1st ex. sess. and RCW 75.44.160 are each repealed.

Passed the Senate February 3, 1984.

Passed the House February 22, 1984.

Approved by the Governor March 1, 1984.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 1, 1984.

CHAPTER 68

[Engrossed Senate Bill No. 3117]

GLUE-SNIFFING—CRIMINAL PROVISIONS MODIFIED

AN ACT Relating to substances containing toxic vapors or fumes; amending section 1, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.010; amending section 2, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.020; amending section 3, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.030; amending section 4, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.040; and defining crimes.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Sec. 1. Section 1, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.010 are each amended to read as follows:

As used in this chapter, the phrase "~~((Glue))~~ substance containing a solvent having the property of releasing toxic vapors or fumes" shall mean and include any ~~((glue, cement, or other adhesive))~~ substance containing one or more of the following chemical compounds:

- (1) Acetone;
- (2) Amylacetate;
- (3) Benzol or benzene;
- (4) Butyl acetate;
- (5) Butyl alcohol;
- (6) Carbon tetrachloride;
- (7) Chloroform;
- (8) Cyclohexanone;
- (9) Ethanol or ethyl alcohol;

- (10) Ethyl acetate;
- (11) Hexane;
- (12) Isopropanol or isopropyl alcohol;
- (13) Isopropyl acetate;
- (14) Methyl "cellosolve" acetate;
- (15) Methyl ethyl ketone;
- (16) Methyl isobutyl ketone;
- (17) Toluol or toluene;
- (18) Trichloroethylene;
- (19) Tricresyl phosphate;
- (20) Xylol or xylene; or
- (21) Any other solvent, material substance, chemical, or combination thereof, having the property of releasing toxic vapors.

Sec. 2. Section 2, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.020 are each amended to read as follows:

It (~~shall be~~) is unlawful for any person to intentionally smell or inhale the fumes of any type of (~~glue~~) substance as defined in RCW 9.47A.010 or to induce any other person to do so, for the purpose of causing a condition of, or inducing symptoms of intoxication, elation, euphoria, dizziness, excitement, irrational behavior, exhilaration, paralysis, stupefaction, or dulling of the senses of the nervous system, or for the purpose of, in any manner, changing, distorting, or disturbing the audio, visual, or mental processes (~~:- PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That~~). This section (~~shall~~) does not apply to the inhalation of any anesthesia for medical or dental purposes.

Sec. 3. Section 3, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.030 are each amended to read as follows:

No person (~~shall~~) may, for the purpose of violating RCW 9.47A.020, use, or possess for the purpose of so using, any (~~glue~~) substance containing a solvent having the property of releasing toxic vapors or fumes.

Sec. 4. Section 4, chapter 149, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 9.47A.040 are each amended to read as follows:

No person (~~shall~~) may sell, offer to sell, deliver, or give to any other person (~~under eighteen years of age~~) any (~~tube or other~~) container of (~~glue~~) a substance containing a solvent having the property of releasing toxic vapors or fumes, if he has knowledge that the product sold, offered for sale, delivered, or given will be used for the purpose set forth in RCW 9.47A.020.

Passed the Senate January 10, 1984.

Passed the House February 24, 1984.

Approved by the Governor March 1, 1984.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State March 1, 1984.